

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIFTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 1, 2010 to June 29, 2011

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 28, 2011

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2011

D. Engaging in fraud, deceit, misrepresentation or conduct prejudicial to public confidence;

E. Insufficiency of the number of tickets sold by ~~the sales agent~~ a person licensed to sell lottery tickets or shares; or

F. A material change, since issuance of the license, with respect to any of the matters required to be considered by the director under section 375 or as defined by rules adopted under this chapter.

Sec. 11. 8 MRSA §376, sub-§2, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 505, §2, is repealed.

Sec. 12. 8 MRSA §409, sub-§2, as enacted by PL 1983, c. 732, §1, is repealed.

Sec. 13. 8 MRSA §411, as enacted by PL 1983, c. 732, §1, is repealed.

Sec. 14. 8 MRSA §412, as enacted by PL 1983, c. 732, §1, is repealed.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 311

S.P. 453 - L.D. 1462

An Act To Amend the Department of Marine Resources' Administrative Suspension Process

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 12 MRSA §6371, as amended by PL 2009, c. 561, §12, is further amended to read:

§6371. Administrative suspension

1. Suspension for refusal to allow inspection. Refusal to allow inspection or seizure under section 6306 is grounds for suspension of any licenses issued under marine resources laws. In order to suspend a license because of a refusal to allow inspection or seizure, the commissioner shall follow the procedures of section 6372.

2. Suspension for refusal to allow a shellfish inspection by a department shellfish inspector. Refusal to allow a shellfish inspection under section 6852-A or 6856 ~~or violation of shellfish sanitation rules adopted under section 6856~~ is grounds for suspension of any licenses or certificates issued under marine resources laws. In order to suspend a license or certificate ~~for these reasons~~ under this subsection, the commissioner shall follow the procedures of section ~~6373~~ 6372.

3. Suspension for violations. ~~Violation~~ Except as provided in subsections 1 and 2, violation of any section of marine resources laws or rules adopted un-

der this Part is grounds for suspension under section 6374 of any licenses or certificates issued under this Part. In order to suspend a license or certificate for a violation, the commissioner shall follow the procedures for license suspension or revocation in the District Court, as provided under Title 4, chapter 5.

Sec. 2. 12 MRSA §6372, first ¶, as enacted by PL 1977, c. 661, §5, is amended to read:

Notwithstanding the Maine Administrative Procedure Act, the procedure for suspending a license ~~or~~ for refusal to allow inspection or seizure under section 6306 ~~shall be~~ or refusal to allow inspection under section 6852-A or section 6856 is as follows.

Sec. 3. 12 MRSA §6373, as amended by PL 1999, c. 547, Pt. B, §30 and affected by §80, is repealed.

Sec. 4. 12 MRSA §6374 is enacted to read:

§6374. Procedure for suspending without criminal conviction or civil adjudication

Except as provided in section 6371, subsections 1 and 2, the procedure for suspending a license or certificate for a violation of marine resources law without a criminal conviction or civil adjudication is governed by this section.

1. Initiation and notice. If the Chief of the Bureau of Marine Patrol delivers to the commissioner a written statement under oath that the chief has probable cause to suspect that a violation of marine resources law has been committed, the commissioner shall immediately examine the affidavit and determine if a suspension is necessary. If the commissioner determines based on a preponderance of the evidence that a suspension is necessary, the commissioner shall immediately notify in writing the person who violated the law. The notice must state that there is an opportunity for a hearing, if the person requests the hearing in writing within 10 days of the notice.

2. Hearing. A hearing requested under subsection 1 must be held within 10 business days after receipt by the commissioner of a request for hearing except that a hearing may be held more than 10 business days after the request if the delay is requested by the person requesting the hearing. The hearing must be held in accordance with the Maine Administrative Procedure Act, except that:

A. Notwithstanding Title 5, section 9057, issues of the hearing are limited to whether the person requesting the hearing had a license and whether that person committed a violation of marine resources law; and

B. Notwithstanding Title 5, section 9061, the decision of the presiding officer under Title 5, section 9062 must be made not more than 10 business days after completion of the hearing.

3. Finding of marine resources violation and suspension. If the presiding officer of the hearing under subsection 2 finds that a violation of marine resources law has been committed, the presiding officer shall immediately notify the commissioner of the finding, and the commissioner may suspend the license or certificate of the person requesting the hearing. The length of the suspension of the license or certificate may not exceed:

- A. One year from the date of a first finding of a violation under this subsection;
- B. Two years from the date of a 2nd finding of a violation under this subsection; or
- C. Three years from the date of a 3rd or subsequent finding of a violation under this subsection.

4. Prohibition against multiple suspensions. If the commissioner suspends a license or certificate under this section, the commissioner may not suspend the license or certificate because of a criminal conviction or civil adjudication for the same violation.

5. Appeal. A decision of the commissioner to suspend a license or certificate pursuant to this section may be appealed to the Superior Court if it is filed with the court within 30 days of the decision.

6. Request for hearing on suspension length; place of hearing. The license or certificate holder may request a hearing regarding the length of suspension under this section. A hearing must be requested in writing within 10 days from the effective date of the suspension. The hearing must be held within 10 days of the request unless a longer period of time is mutually agreed to in writing. The hearing must be conducted in the Augusta area.

Sec. 5. 12 MRSA §6852-A, sub-§7 is enacted to read:

7. Inspection. For the purposes of inspection or collection of samples, the commissioner or the commissioner's agent may access an establishment or part thereof or vehicle in which activities authorized under this section are conducted by a person holding an enhanced retail seafood license. Denial of access is grounds for suspension or revocation of an enhanced retail seafood license under the provisions of section 6372.

Sec. 6. 12 MRSA §6856, sub-§5, as amended by PL 2003, c. 248, §11, is further amended to read:

5. Right of entry. Whenever a certificate has been issued under this section, the commissioner, or the commissioner's agent, must have access to any establishment or part thereof for the purpose of inspection or collection of samples. Denial of access is grounds for suspension or revocation of any certificate or license under the provisions of section ~~6373~~ 6372.

Sec. 7. Appropriations and allocations. The following appropriations and allocations are made.

MARINE RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF Office of the Commissioner 0258

Initiative: Provides an allocation to contract with the Department of the Secretary of State to conduct administrative hearings.

OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS	2011-12	2012-13
All Other	\$5,625	\$5,625
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS TOTAL	\$5,625	\$5,625

See title page for effective date.

**CHAPTER 312
H.P. 1082 - L.D. 1473**

An Act To Clarify Rights-of-way Laws

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 33 MRSA §469-A, sub-§§1 and 2, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 385, §4, are amended to read:

1. Reservation of title. Any conveyance made before ~~the effective date of this section which~~ September 29, 1987 that conveyed land abutting upon a proposed, unaccepted way laid out on a subdivision plan recorded in the registry of deeds ~~shall be~~ is deemed to have conveyed all of the grantor's interest in the portion of the way ~~which~~ that abuts the land conveyed, unless the grantor expressly reserved ~~his~~ the grantor's title to the way by a specific reference to this reservation in the conveyance of the land.

2. Intent to reserve. Any grantor who, before ~~the effective date of this section~~ September 29, 1987, conveyed land abutting a proposed, unaccepted way laid out on a subdivision plan recorded in the registry of deeds with the intent to reserve title to the way, but who did not expressly reserve title to the way as required in subsection 1, or any person who claims title to the way by, through or under the grantor, may preserve the grantor's claim by recording the notice set forth in subsection 3, in the registry of deeds where the pertinent subdivision plan is recorded, within 2 years after ~~the effective date of this section~~ September 29, 1987.

Sec. 2. 33 MRSA §469-A, sub-§6, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 385, §4, is amended to read: